
 

 

Working on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council 
and Gloucestershire County Council 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
 

Tuesday 1st April, 2014 at 1.30 pm 
 

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council             Cotswold District Council            Forest of Dean District Council        Gloucestershire County Council 
Municipal Offices              Council Offices                Council Offices        Shire Hall  
Promenade              Trinity House                High Street         Westgate Street 
Cheltenham              Cirencester                Coleford         Gloucester 
Gloucestershire             Gloucestershire                Gloucestershire        Gloucestershire 
GL50 9SA              GL7 1PX                GL16 8HG         GL1 2TG 
Tel: 01242 262626              Tel 01285 623000               Tel: 01594 810000         Tel: 01452 425000 



 

 

 
 



 

 

    

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

 
 

     

Tuesday 1st April, 2014 at 1.30 pm 

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

AGENDA 

   

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  
 

The Chairman to welcome everyone to the meeting. 
 

Chairman 
 

2 APOLOGIES  
 

To receive apologies for absence. 
 

Chairman 
 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

To note any declarations of interest. 
 

Chairman 
 
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

To note and agree the minutes from the committee meeting on 19 
December 2013 (minutes attached).  
 

Chairman 
 
 

5 CHELTENHAM PLASTICS COLLECTION TRIAL  
 

A verbal presentation from the Joint Waste Team.  
 

Scott Williams 
(Joint Waste 
Team) 
 

6 MEMBERSHIP UPDATE AND INTER AUTHORITY AGREEMENT  
 

An update on the position of Tewkesbury Borough Council in joining the 
Joint Waste Committee and the implications on the Inter Authority 
Agreement. 
 

Steve Read 
(Joint Waste 
Team) 
 

7 BUSINESS PLANS AND PERFORMANCE UPDATE  
 

A performance update from the Joint Waste Team and from Gloucester 
City, Tewkesbury Borough and Stroud District Councils.  
 

Rachel Capon 
(Joint Waste 
Team) 
 



 

 

     

 

   

8 WASTE (ENGLAND AND WALES) REGULATIONS 2011  
 

An update on the requirement to have separate collections of recyclable 
materials in place by 1 January 2015, subject to being ‘technically, 
environmentally and economically practicable’. (TEEP). 

 

Andy Pritchard 
(Joint Waste 
Team) 
 

9 FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

2014 
Tuesday 1 April  
Tuesday 10 June (AGM) 
Tuesday 14 October  
Tuesday 16 December  
 
2015 
Tuesday 10 February  
Tuesday 21 April  
Tuesday 9 June (AGM) 
Tuesday 13 October  
Tuesday 15 December  

 

Chairman 
 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP: 
 

• Cheltenham Borough Council: Cllr Roger Whyborn; Cllr Steve Jordan 

 

• Cotswolds District Council: Cllr David Fowles; Cllr Barry Gibbs 

 

• Forest of Dean District Council: Cllr Martin Quaile; Cllr Terry Hale 

 

• Gloucestershire County Council: Cllr Ray Theodoulou; Cllr Stan Waddington 

 

 

 (a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk)  
prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 (b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: please contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
�:01452 425005/fax: 425850/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

   

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions. 



 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE 
 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee held on Thursday 
19th December, 2013 at Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester. 
 
Attendance: Members 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council     GCC 
Cllr Roger Whyborn      Cllr Ray Theodoulou 
Cllr Steve Jordan      Jo Walker 
Jane Griffiths        
  
Cotswold District Council      Forest Of Dean District Council 
Cllr David Fowles      Cllr Martin Quaile   
Cllr Barry Gibbs      Cllr Terry Hale   
Claire Locke       Peter Hibberd  
 
Attendance: Supporting Officers 
Lloyd Griffiths (Gloucester City Council) 
Julie Davies (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
Rachel North (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
Cllr Jim Mason (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
Cllr Robert Vines (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 

 
Joint Waste Team 
Steve Read (Joint Waste Team) 
Tony Childs (Joint Waste Team) 
 
 

 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.   

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Stan Waddington (Gloucestershire County Council). 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest at this meeting. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the Joint Waste Committee meeting held on 31 July 2013 were agreed and 
signed as an accurate record of that meeting.  

Members also noted the comments made during the informal discussion on 22 October 
2013. (Members were reminded that, in accordance with Schedule 1 of the Gloucestershire 
Joint Waste Committee Inter Authority Agreement, it had been necessary to cancel the 
Joint Waste Committee meeting on 22 October 2013 due to failing to reach the required 
quorum for the meeting). Cllr David Fowles, (Cotswold District Council), apologised that he 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 
had been unable to attend the meeting as he had been unexpectedly diverted due to work 
pressures on the day and had not had time to arrange a substitute. 

 

5. DRAFT PRESS AND PUBLICITY PROTOCOL  
 
Head of Service, Steve Read, presented the Draft Press and Publicity Protocol that had 
been considered as part of the informal committee discussion on 22 October 2013. 
Outlining the main revisions to the document, the Head of Service said that the discussion 
had been a useful preview on how the Joint Waste Committee, through the Joint Waste 
Team and Administering Authority’s Press Team, could best administer its communications 
with the press, media and public.   
 
Drawing on the comments that had been made at the earlier Gloucestershire Waste 
Partnership meeting, it was suggested that the document make references to ‘participating’ 
and ‘non-participating members’ rather than making references to individual authorities by 
name. It was also suggested that a review of the position of the non-participating 
authorities be considered at each Annual General Meeting.  
 
The protocol was adopted, subject to the amendments suggested at the meeting. 
 

6. OVERVIEW OF SEVERE WEATHER ARRANGEMENTS  
 
Members recalled the information that had been circulated as part of the informal 
discussion in October, advising them of the arrangements that had been put in place by 
each authority to address severe weather conditions. Those members speaking at the 
meeting felt that the exercise had been useful, particularly when considering some of the 
challenges that might be experienced in forthcoming months. In noting the information, the 
committee made the following observations: - 
 

a) The need to communicate with Gloucestershire Highways when responding to 

adverse weather conditions;   

 
b) Greater consideration to be given to the condition and accessibility of roads in rural 

areas;  

 
c) The importance of community participation, and the need to relay this message to 

parish councils;  

 
d) The impact of flooding to form part of the arrangements;  

 
e) The need to implement the arrangements based on safety considerations;  

The principle of the exercise was well received with several members welcoming the 
commonality of the arrangements. One member requested information on the use and 
accessibility of grit bins, whilst another member suggested the creation of an emergency 
collection policy. The comments were noted, followed by a suggestion that the 
arrangements be reviewed again in the New Year.  
 
Action – to review the arrangements for service collections in adverse weather 
conditions in the New Year 
 
 
 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

7. MEMBER AND PUBLIC QUESTIONS PROTOCOL  
 
At the County Constitution Committee meeting on 7 October 2013, a request was made for 
the Joint Waste Committee to consider public and elected member questions at future 
meetings. This request was later reinforced by questions at the County Council’s Cabinet 
meeting on 23 October 2013, enquiring into the arrangements for considering public and 
member questions at Joint Waste Committee meetings.  
 
Based on the principles of considering questions at the cabinet meetings of the 
administering authority, (Gloucestershire County Council), a draft protocol was circulated 
with the agenda, seeking formal adoption on the process for asking questions at Joint 
Waste Committee meetings.  
 
In considering the draft protocol, the following comments were made: -  
 

a) The process for asking questions at committee meetings was accepted in principle;  
 

b) Members reiterated the importance of managing the time allowed for considering 
questions at meetings;  
 

c) All questions, including supplementary questions, to relate to items on the agenda;  
 

d) The protocol to be subject to local enhancements, and at the discretion of the 
Committee Chairman. 

 
Noting the recommendations from the Gloucestershire County Council’s Constitution 
Committee meeting on 7 October 2013, the Joint Waste Committee: -   
 
Adopted the Member and Public Question Protocol, subject to the comments made 
at the meeting.  
 

8. OUTLINE DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN  
 
Head of Service, Steve Read, presented the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee Draft 
Business Plan for the period 2014-17. In presenting the report, the Head of Service said 
that the purpose of the business plan was to provide a mandate for the Gloucestershire 
Joint Waste Committee partners, (Cheltenham Borough Council; Cotswold District Council; 
Forest of Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council), from which to make 
decisions in accordance with set governance and budgetary principles, without having to 
consult the partner authorities individually over every single non-key decision. 
 
Highlighting key points and priorities, the Head of Service advised members that it was 
important to look at ways in which the committee could take the business plan forward, 
including considering alternative waste disposal options to landfill should the appeal 
against the decision to refuse planning application for the energy to waste incinerator at 
Javelin Park, Haresfield be unsuccessful. The committee was informed that the County 
Council had set up a task and finish group, known as the ‘Residual Waste Working Group’, 
to look at contingency plans should this be the case. Officers from the Joint Waste Team 
had been asked to support this process.  
 
In noting the business plan, members were informed that, if accepted by the committee, a 
full version of the plan would be produced for dissemination purposes by individual 
authorities. Whilst some members believed it was important to seek the sign off of the plan 
through their cabinet or other decision making bodies, other members recalled that each 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 
authority had authorised their Joint Waste Committee Members to approve the plan, (there 
being no formal requirement for consultation within the Inter Authority Agreement). It was 
therefore suggested that it be left to the discretion of each partner as to whether they 
wished to consider the draft plan.  
 
With this in mind, it was agreed to note the business plan, with any comments, questions or 
concerns from partners to be fed back to the Joint Waste Team for consideration before 
final adoption by the Joint Waste Committee at the next meeting.   
 

9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

11 February 2014 

17 April 2014 

10 June 2014 

 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
Meeting concluded at 3.15 pm 

 
 

Page 4



 

JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE 

TRIAL & POTENTIAL PERMANENT SERVICE ENHANCEMENT OF  

MIXED RIGID PLASTICS AT BRING SITES IN CHELTENHAM 

 

 

Accountable Member   Cllr Roger Whyborn 

     Cabinet Lead CBC 

 

Accountable Officer   Scott Williams 

     Strategic Client Officer - Joint Waste Team 

 

Purpose of Report 

To provide details of an opportunity to run a trial over a 12 week period of mixed rigid plastic 

recycling at a number of larger bring sites in Cheltenham, with the potential  to introduce a 

permanent service enhancement if the results of the trial are favourable and support the 

business case. 

Recommendation(s) 

That the Joint Waste Committee; 

Make the recommendation to Cheltenham Borough Council to complete a trial of mixed rigid 

plastic recycling at a number of the larger bring sites in Cheltenham. 

Make the recommendation to Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC) to implement permanent 

mixed rigid plastic recycling at strategic bring sites if the results of the trial are supported by 

the business case. 

Reason for Recommendation(s) 

To test the viability of the business case for mixed rigid plastic recycling in Cheltenham at 

the larger bring sites and the potential to introduce as a permanent service enhancement, 

which should increase recycling performance for both CBC, JWC and the GWP. 

Financial Implications 

There is an estimated reduction of £5,563 in material income and £1,031 in recycling credits 

as a result of not continuing to collect plastic bottles separately. 

There is an estimated reduction of £174 in material income and £508 in recycling credits by 

permanently closing the smaller bring sites.  

The total estimated reduction in income is £7,276. 

If the results of the trial are positive and the permanent service enhancement is introduced, it 

is anticipated that these reductions in income will be largely mitigated by the increase in all 

materials being collected at the larger bring sites, as a result of the permanent 

implementation of mixed rigid plastic recycling. 

In which case, it would therefore be proposed to offset any reduction in income from within 

the current CBC waste management revenue budget. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Key Risks 

The following risks are associated with the recommendation(s) within this report; 

Due to the volatility of the current market failure to secure an outlet for mixed rigid plastics on 

permanent introduction of the service enhancement may result in CBC having to suspend 

the service and/or stockpile/landfill the material. However, this risk is mitigated by CBC 

having a contract in place with Printwaste for it to accept the material and source the 

necessary re-processors.  

Failure to promote the trial and potential permanent service enhancement properly may 

result in low participation, which may affect the business case for permanent bring site mixed 

rigid plastic recycling. This risk should be mitigated by the Joint Waste Team (JWT) working 

with the Council communications team project managing a specific communications 

programme to support both the trial and the potential permanent launch of this service 

enhancement. 

Failure to properly understand the likely yield of plastics being collected at the bring sites 

may result in Ubico not being able to cope with demand, which may lead to increased 

waiting times for bank emptying and associated complaints being received by the Council. 

The risk should be mitigated by the JWT supporting CBC and Ubico in re-assessing the 

business case once the results of the trial have been analysed. 

Appendices 

Attached at Appendix A is the business case for mixed rigid plastic bring site recycling in 

Cheltenham which has been prepared by Ubico.  

Conclusion 

A large proportion of residents in Cheltenham are keen to see the opportunity to recycle 

mixed rigid plastics within their area and have made this clear to the Council and its 

Members. 

Whilst the implementation of permanent mixed rigid plastic recycling bring sites does carry 

its own risks both financially and reputationally, it is anticipated that these can be mitigated 

by careful assessment of the business case following the trial and through a tailored 

communications and promotion campaign for both the trial and potential permanent 

introduction of this service enhancement.  

 

Page 6



Agenda Item 5 
Appendix A 

 

 
 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

Expanded plastic recycling following a bring site review 
January 2014 

 
 
Ubico serves 18 ‘Bring Sites’ on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council. The materials 
collected in the council’s banks are cardboard, paper, plastic bottles, glass and cans. 
Other materials are collected at the sites via third party and charity banks but these are 
outside the scope of this review. 
 
Performance over two 12-month periods has been analysed (September 2011 to August 
2012, and September 2012 to August 2013), with the analysis focusing specifically on 
the following areas: 
 

◊ The number of empties undertaken at each site 

◊ The total tonnage collected from each site 

◊ The contribution of each site to the total arisings from all the bring sites 
 
The total number of empties undertaken reduced from 2000 in 2011-12 to 1650 in 2012-
13 (-350 per annum). 
 
The total tonnage collected from all the sites also reduced by just over 80 tonnes. 
 
Supermarkets are the most popular sites with Morrisons being the most serviced site. 
Bath Terrace car park is also very popular and is one of the most challenging sites due 
to space constraints and the depositing of commercial waste.  
 
Tommy Taylor’s Lane, QE2 Playing Fields, Quat Goose Lane (now closed), St Marks 
Community Centre, High St Car Park and Sandford Lido Car Park require only a handful 
of empties each year (1 to 6). 
 
North Place car park site is being closed due to redevelopment and this will release 
additional capacity within the service (100 empties per annum, or 2 per week). 
 
Plastic bottles account for a relatively small percentage by weight but due to the nature 
of the material there is a requirement for regular servicing of the skips. If the range of 
plastic were expanded to include mixed rigid plastic then it is recommended that a 
cautious approach is taken with only the busiest sites promoted as receiving mixed 
plastics.  
 
The 350 per annum lift capacity plus the 100 from North Place, provide capacity for 9 
additional lifts per week (based on 50 week operation). The table on page 2 suggests 
how this capacity may be utilised to introduce mixed rigid plastic to a limited number of 
bring sites. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Agenda Item 5 
Appendix A 

 
 
 
 

Recycle Bank Number of 
plastic skips  

Number of 
empties Sept 
12-Aug 13 

Average per 
week 

(divided by 
50)  

Recommend 
sites and 
estimated 
number of 
additional 
collections  

Caernarvon Road, Morrisons 2 50 1 2 
Priors Road, Sainsbury's 1 42 0.84 3 
Manor Road, Sainsbury's 1 39 0.78 2 
Bath Terrace Car Park 1 30 0.6 2 
Hatherley Lane, Asda 1 24 0.48 1 
Church Piece Car Park 1 21 0.42 N/A 

Edinburgh Place Car Park 1 19 0.38 N/A 
St James Street Car Park 1 16 0.32 N/A 

Sixways Car Park 1 14 0.28 N/A 
Everest Road, Old Patesians 1 4 0.08 N/A 

Q.E. II Playing Field 1 2 0.04 N/A 
Whaddon Road, CTFC 1 1 0.02 N/A 

Total  15 262 5.24 10.0 
 
It is recognised however that providing mixed plastic collections at a limited number of 
sites might be confusing to the public. If a decision was taken to decommission the less 
frequently used sites (Tommy Taylor’s Lane, QE II Playing Fields, St Marks Community 
Centre, High St Car Park and Sandford Lido Car Park) then the capacity generated 
would enable all current plastic bottle skips to be used for mixed rigid plastics (with the 
exception of QE II which would be closed). This is shown in the table below. 
 

Recycle Bank Number of 
plastic skips  

Number of 
empties Sept 
12-Aug 13 

Average per 
week 

(divided by 
50)  

Recommend 
sites and 
estimated 
number of 
additional 
collections  

Caernarvon Road, Morrisons 2 50 1 2 
Priors Road, Sainsbury's 1 42 0.84 3 
Manor Road, Sainsbury's 1 39 0.78 2 
Bath Terrace Car Park 1 30 0.60 2 
Hatherley Lane, Asda 1 24 0.48 1 
Church Piece Car Park 1 21 0.42 0.5 

Edinburgh Place Car Park 1 19 0.38 0.5 
St James Street Car Park 1 16 0.32 0.5 

Sixways Car Park 1 14 0.28 0.5 
Everest Road, Old Patesians 1 4 0.08 0.5 

Whaddon Road, CTFC 1 1 0.02 0.5 
Total  13 260 5.20 13.0 

 

 

The Joint Waste team have confirmed that Printwaste have committed to supporting 
CBC to run a trial of mixed plastics. The contract with Printwaste has not yet been 

Page 8



Agenda Item 5 
Appendix A 

finalised and this proposal is captured in the Heads of Terms which as yet have not been 
signed off. However Printwaste seem to be receptive of receiving this material.  
 
The plastics market is quite volatile at the moment and therefore represents a risk to the 
ongoing provision of this service. Reports have been received of other authorities 
stockpiling mixed rigid plastics as they cannot find a market for them and do not want to 
pay the landfill costs (having already claimed recycling credits). 
 
Without knowing the quality of the material being collected Printwaste estimate that they 
would charge between £20 and £30 a tonne to take mixed rigid plastic. This is in 
contrast to £70 per tonne that CBC currently receives for plastic bottles. In 2012/13 a 
total of 75 tonnes of plastic bottles were collected from bring sites. The table below 
shows the financial impact on material income if the change were made. 
 

Material Tonnage Price Impact  

Plastic bottles 75 £70 (income) - £5,250 

Mixed plastics (incl. bottles) 75 £25 (est. 
expenditure) 

- £1,875 

Mixed plastics (growth) 20 (est.) £25 (est. 
expenditure) 

- £500 

    

Recycling Credits Increase 20 £51.55 + £1,031 

  Total - £6,594 

 
In addition, closure of the smaller recycling sites would result in an anticipated reduction 
in income as follows; 
 

Material Tonnage Price Impact  

Glass 9 £10.50 - £94.50 

Cans 0.5 £110.00 - £55.00 

Plastic Bottles 0.36 £70 (loss) - £25 

    

Recycling Credits Loss  9.86 £51.55 - £508 

  Total - £682.50 
 

 
  
Conclusions 
 
The closure of the less frequently used bring sites (Tommy Taylor’s Lane, QE II Playing 
Fields, St Marks Community Centre, High St Car Park and Sandford Lido Car Park), 
along with the closure of the North Place car park site, will provide sufficient capacity to 
introduce mixed rigid plastic collections at the other sites within existing budget. 
 
This would however leave a gap in bring site provision in the west end of the town centre 
area. To overcome this consideration should be given to retaining the High Street car 
park site as it is currently not a busy site and will need little attention. 
 
Without agreed prices and handling charges for mixed rigid plastics it is not possible for 
Ubico to accurately determine the cost / benefit of expanding plastic recycling at bring 
sites but this report shows that the skip operation can be delivered within existing 
budget. 

Page 9



Agenda Item 5 
Appendix A 

 
Risks 
 
Financial - The market for recycled plastics is known to be volatile and this will impact on 
income budgets. 
 
Financial – contamination and the percentage mix of plastic bottles to other rigid plastic 
containers may change and increase handling charges. 
 
Reputation - If an end market cannot be found then the material may have to be 
landfilled. 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

 

INCLUSION OF TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

IN THE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE 

 

Committee  Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

Committee Date  1 April 2014 

Significant 

Decision 

Yes 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team 

(01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

Consultees 

 

JWC Partner Authorities and Tewkesbury Borough Council 

Purpose of Report The purpose of this report is to commence the formal process of 

including Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) within the 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. 

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Joint Waste Committee: 

1) Welcomes Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Executive’s decision 
to recommend to their Full Council on 15th April 2014, that 
Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) joins the Joint Waste 
Committee and, subject to their recommendation being 
accepted:- 

2) Recommends to Partner Authorities to seek the necessary 
authority to revise the Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) to: 

a. include TBC as a formal member 
b. amend the IAA as set out in Section 3 of this report and  
c. make further amendments as deemed appropriate by the 

Head of Service of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team. 
3) Approves that One Legal be appointed as Legal advisors to 

revise the IAA and to circulate it to the Partner Authorities for 
approval. 

4) Authorises the Head of Service Gloucestershire Joint Waste 
Team to prepare a joint press release with TBC following 
confirmation of TBC’s decision to join and agreement of the 
revised IAA.    

Resource 

Implications 

 

 

 

Tewkesbury Borough Council has, along with the existing members, already 
made a financial contribution to the GJWC of £30,000 in preparation for full 
membership. This pooled funding is ring-fenced to cover the shared element 
of the operational costs of the Joint Waste Team (JWT) for a minimum of 3 
years (from 2013). No further financial contribution from TBC or other 
partners is required at this time other than continuing to fund staff transferred 
to the JWT.  

The current IAA contains a cost sharing formula at schedule 6 which it was 
intended would apply to future joint funding. It is proposed to accommodate 
the required variation to this as set out in paragraph 3.3 below.  

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



 
1. Background   

  
1.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC) ‘deferred’ a decision on whether to join the 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee at a Special Executive Committee on 25 
November 2011, subject to a clearer understanding of the potential benefits to the 
authority. 
 

1.2 Having now considered the opportunities afforded by joining, TBC’s Executive Committee 
on 3 March 2014 agreed to make recommendations to Council to the effect that:-  

 
(a)  TBC agrees to join the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. 
(b)  TBC’s functions in relation to the collection management, disposal treatment or 

recycling of waste and street cleansing, subject to retained decisions as laid out in 
the report, be delegated to the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. 

(c) The Leader of the Council and Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment 
represent TBC on the GJWC. 

(d)  Authority is delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader 
of the Council and the Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment, to enter 
into the Inter Authority Agreement referred to in this report on terms approved by 
the Borough Solicitor.  

 
1.3 The JWC Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) and Constitution allow for the addition of new 

members. The JWC aspires for all Gloucestershire Councils to join and will welcome this 
news. 

 
2. Process for Inclusion of Tewkesbury BC 
 
2.1  Clause 14 of the IAA states:  
 
 “If it is agreed by all Partner Authorities that another local authority should be permitted to 

join the GJWC then the GJWC shall be dissolved and this Agreement terminated with a 
view to a new GJWC being established and a replacement agreement on similar terms to 
this Agreement (as varied by agreement of the proposed Partner Authorities) being 
completed with effect from the date of termination of this Agreement”.  

 
 The Process for inclusion of new members therefore requires all members to approve a 

revision of the Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) and Constitution. Upon all parties formally 
approving the new IAA, the existing JWC will be dissolved and replaced by the new JWC. 

 
2.2 TBC have defined the process of approval (see 1.2(d) above). It is for each existing 

partner to determine how this recommendation is considered and approved. 
 

2.3 The inclusion of TBC will involve the transfer of one member of staff to the JWT from the 
joining date, with formal TUPE transfer to the Administering Authority on behalf of the 
JWT to be completed in due course. The process of integrating the staff member 
concerned into the JWT has already begun, as has the inclusion of TBC’s Deputy Chief 
Executive into the Strategic Management Group. 

 
2.4 It is proposed that TBC’s current Action Plan for Waste services is adopted alongside the 

current JWC business plan and that actions for all partners be integrated in future editions 
of the plan.  

 
3.  Other amendments to the IAA 
 
3.1  There are a number of minor amendments which will be included in the revised draft for 

partners to review. These include, for example, reference to the “Joint Waste Team” 
instead of the “Joint Waste Management Unit” and updates to each partner’s particulars. 
The TUPE schedule will be revised to delete references to staff who have now transferred 

Page 12



and to include instead the staff member who will be transferring from TBC to the JWT 
(Gloucestershire County Council as the employing authority)..  

 
 
3.2  Removal of Appendix 3 to Schedule 1 
 
 Appendix 3 to Schedule 1 of the existing IAA consists of the first Annual Business Plan. 

This has since been superceded by the current Business Plan 2014-17. However the 
current Business Plan does not include TBC, who have a separate action plan.  

 
 In view of the requirement for the JWC Business Plan to be a public document updated 

annually, it is proposed to remove Appendix 3 to Schedule 1 and any references thereto, 
without replacement. The original intention was to ensure partners knew the programme 
of work for the first year in agreeing the IAA. If the current version was attached it would 
itself be out of date within a year.  Removing the appendix does not affect the 
requirement to produce and publish an Annual Business Plan. 

 
3.3  Budget and Cost sharing agreement  
 
 The current IAA contains a cost sharing formula at Schedule 6 which it was intended 

would apply to future joint funding. 
 
 This Schedule and formulae within it will need to be amended to include TBC. However, 

as the formula is not presently used, it is not proposed to amend the Schedule as it 
stands, but to bring recommendations to the Committee on future cost sharing as part of 
the next iteration of the business planning and budget process for the period 2015-18. 

 
Partner authorities shared the costs associated with the set up of the GJWC and of the 
Head of Service. They continue to carry the cost associated with the staff that they TUPE 
transferred into the JWT.  TBC would fund equivalent staff costs and there would be no 
cross subsidy with or between existing GJWP partners. 

 
 In the event that the JWC is recommended to jointly fund a project or programme, or 

realise savings prior to this, then apportionment of the costs/benefits between all five 
partners will be considered as part of the project proposal and not necessarily in 
accordance with the current formulae. 

 
3.4 In the event that any other amendments are required to the IAA, the Head of Service will 

consult with SMG prior to instructing the legal advisor to include these in the in revised 
document. 

 
4.  Timetable  
 
4.1 It is proposed to aim to complete the process in time for the Joint Waste Committee AGM 

on 10 June 2014, however in view of the need for all partners to go through the process 
of approving the revised IAA, this is not an absolute deadline. 

 
5. Risks and Opportunities  
 
5.1  TBC has considered risks in the report to the Executive dated 3rd March 2014.  
 

There are no obvious new risks arising for the existing partners but, in bringing any new   
partners into an existing arrangement, there may be changes to the impact and 
probability of existing risks particularly around consensus and governance. However the 
JWT is already working with TBC and members attend and contribute to debate at JWC 
meetings, the risk is low.  The Risk Register for the JWC is in the process of being 
updated and will be brought to the next meeting for approval. It will include consideration 
of any additional or raised risks as a result of enlarging the partnership.  
 

Page 13



5.2 As additional partners join the GJWC there are greater opportunities in areas including:-  
 

• Joint procurement, projects and initiatives achieving cost savings 

• Service efficiencies 

• Increased resilience  
 
 
6. Equalities Implications 
 
6.1  The re-constituting of the JWC does not affect services to the public in Tewkesbury 

Borough or elsewhere; there are no equalities implications arising from the proposal. 
 
7. Background Papers 
 

• The Existing GJWC Inter Authority Agreement dated 28 March 2013 
 

• TBC Report to Executive dated 3 March 2014 
 

 http://minutes.tewkesbury.gov.uk/documents/s22712/Glos%20Joint%20Waste%20Cttee%20Repor
t.pdf  

Page 14



Agenda item 8 
1 April 2014 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE  
 

CONSIDERATION OF RISKS AROUND COMPLIANCE  

WITH THE WASTE REGULATIONS 2011 

 

The revised EU Waste Framework Directive aims to deliver the best environmental 
outcomes and the protection of the environment and human health.  High quality 
recycling is included as a key principle.  The Directive has been transposed into law 
in England and Wales under the Waste Regulations 2011 (as amended), which state 
that separate collections of at least paper, metal, plastic and glass are required 
where they are (a) necessary to ensure that waste undergoes recovery operations in 
accordance with Articles 4 and 13 and to facilitate or improve recovery; and (b) 
technically, environmentally and economically practicable (TEEP).  (Article 4 sets out 
the waste hierarchy.  Article 13 requires waste management to be without 
endangering human health or harming the environment.)  These become a legal 
requirement from 1 January 2015. The new duties also mean that where waste 
paper, metal, plastic or glass has been collected separately, all reasonable steps 
must be taken to keep them separate wherever this is necessary to provide high 
quality recyclates. 

Councils have been left in the dark over what steps should be taken to ensure they 
comply with the regulations after Defra opted to scrap proposed statutory guidance 
on the issue in January this year. This was a surprise as the guidance was at a late 
stage of development. It is understood that the LGA, who were involved in drafting 
the guidance, withdrew support for the document.   

This has heightened speculation that demonstrating compliance with TEEP may be 
problematic to many local authorities and, in the absence of guidance, the burden of 
interpreting the law and assessing risk shifts entirely to individual local authorities. 
Not surprisingly, the threat of potential legal action is causing concern among local 
authorities. One interest group has already written to LAs who have recently 
switched to co-mingled asking them to show how they have reached such a decision 
- and this is before the requirement commences in January 2015.   

The Regulations do not prohibit the use of all co-mingled collections of the four 
waste materials from 2015 – they establish separate collection as the default 
position, and set out the conditions under which LAs can deviate. It can be 
reasonably assumed that those (including Cheltenham at present) who collect 
recyclate using a well managed kerbside sort system, providing higher quality, 
cleaner and less contaminated material) are likely to be deemed to comply. 

For co-mingled systems it may reduce risk of challenge if it can be demonstrated that 
the quantity and quality of the recyclate collected in a co-mingled system is similar to 
that achieved through separate collection.  However all councils must ensure that 
they apply the “necessity” and (if necessary) ‘TEEP tests’ to any decisions taken 
over collections – in relation to their existing collection system and, especially, if they 
are considering changing the system. There are no specific requirements to 
document decisions about whether separate collection is necessary and practicable 
in a particular circumstance.  However, Waste Collection Authorities who do not 

Agenda Item 8

Page 15



Agenda item 8 
1 April 2014 

provide a clear and documented audit trail may find that they are more likely to face 
legal challenge or enforcement proceedings.  Defra have indicated that they think 
councils would be wise, by January 2015, to undertake an assessment and be able 
to provide a clear and documented audit trail as to how their methodology was 
appraised in relation to the separation of paper, metal, plastic and glass. 

If a change of collection methodology is agreed by any collection authority it will 
therefore be vital to have a clear trail of how the decision is reached. What is 
apparent is that commingling cannot be justified purely on the grounds that it is what 
residents or the authority would like. The EC Guidance on the Directive also makes it 
clear that commingling cannot be justified purely on the grounds that it costs less 
than separate collection: the test of what is “economically practicable” refers to a 
separate collection which does not cause “excessive costs” in comparison with the 
treatment of a non-separated waste stream, considering the added value of recovery 
and recycling and the principle of proportionality. 

Both WRAP and a network of professional groups representing the interest of local 
authorities are working on a routemap for local authorities to follow in assessing 
whether their current system, or options they are considering, are likely to comply 
with the Regulations.  The process will not provide definitive assurance but it may 
assist with the option appraisal.  The routemap is expected to be available by the 
end of April 2014. During the development of this routemap, legal opinion is being 
sought on; 

• Whether or not AD would be classed as Recycling or Recovery, and how this 
would therefore impact upon TEEP. 

• Whether or not the regulations apply retrospectively to existing recycling 
collection services. It may be sensible to do this in any case in order to 
establish a baseline TEEP for services. 

• Whether quality thresholds are able to be defined. However it is generally 
accepted that markets will determine this for themselves. 

• How to balance the various components of TEEP, particularly Economic and 
Environmental issues. 

• Whether WDA’s have a TEEP liability in relation to issuing powers of direction 
to WCA’s (although powers of direction may no longer be available in law). 

In parallel with all of this, a MRF Quality Protocol and Code of Practice has been 
developed by the government in conjunction with the waste industry, WRAP and the 
Environment Agency. This is in the final stages of development. It contains a 
requirement for public reporting of the quality of MRF inputs and outputs, and this is 
likely to be important data for authorities to use in their TEEP assessments. 

The JWT will continue to monitor developments over the next few months in 
preparation for ensuring compliance with the Regulations. 

 

 

Page 16


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Cheltenham Plastics Collection Trial
	Item 5 - Appendix A Ubico Business Case Mixed Rigid Plastics

	6 Membership Update and Inter Authority Agreement
	8 Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011

